Answers to Industry Comments/Questions on the Draft Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II Draft RFP posted 3/30/2012 and Industry Day 4/12/2012

May 10, 2012

133.  Reference SOW 3.3.6 Emergency Power Systems: The section specifies inspection schedules for fixed mounted UPS, but is silent on other emergency power systems, particularly stationary and mobile generator sets. 

             Question:  Can the Government provide inspection/test requirements for these systems?

              Answer:  Stationary generators are load banked quarterly, black started semi-annually, and start tested weekly.  Mobile generators are load banked monthly.  The inspection schedules reside in CMMS.

149. The PWS specifies that all work will comply with NPR 8831.2, Facility Operations and Maintenance Handbook, which in Chapter 7 discusses the RCM and PT&I specified in the SOW. The importance of the RCM program is that depending on its maturity the manpower required in total, to perform reactive and preventive maintenance is affected.  This in turn affects the sizing and required skill levels of the bid O&M staff, which has a direct bearing on the cost proposal. It also affects the year by year savings one can anticipate as a result of using RCM. The questions therefore are:
a.  Question: What is the status of the existing Reliability Centered Maintenance (RCM) program?  

       Answer:  See answer to Question 16 posted February 29, 2012.

b.  Question: Is a full PT&I program in effect? 

        Answer:  Yes, there is a full PT&I program in effect.


c.  Question: If so, how mature is it in terms of years of collected data? 

       Answer:  The RCM program was initiated approximately 10 years ago.  
d.  Question: Have periodic PT&I reports been submitted? Moreover, will they be made available?

       Answer:  All PT&I information will be available in CMMS after contract award. 

e.  Question:  Has the full spectrum of PT&I methods specified in NPR 8831.2 Para 7.7.5.2 been used or has only a subset been applied? 

       Answer:  All of the sub-elements, “a” through “j”, of NPR 8831.2 Para 7.7.5.2 have been utilized with the exception of Wear Particle Analysis, Motor Current Analysis, and Corrosion Monitoring.
f.  Question:  Does the government currently provide vibrometers for vibration analysis?, infra-red cameras for thermal imaging?, other measurement equipment for example electrical motor current analysis? 

       Answer:  All currently provided equipment is listed in the Draft RFP Attachment J-3 IAGP. 
g.  Question:  Are the PT&I data entered into MAXIMO or is there a separate database?

       Answer:  PT&I data is entered into MAXIMO which is a subset of CMMS.

h.  Question:  If separate, it please identify as such in the PWS and state in what category it is  classified? 

      Answer:  See answer to Question 149g.

i.  Question: If data on PT&I are not available or forthcoming what baseline is a contractor to use in discussing their approach to performing PM?  

      Answer: Additional information on number of PT&I and PM work orders are provided in the Draft RFP, Attachment J-2, Appendix to the SOW. 
j.  Question:  If there is no active program will the government provide necessary instrumentation required to begin collecting RCM data? or should the contractor price these items in the cost proposal?   

      Answer: See answer to Question 16 posted February 29, 2012.
k.  Question: If there is a current PT&I program are there handheld devices or tablets being used in the field for reporting and transmitting data to the PT&I database? 

       Answer:  No, there are no handheld devices, tablets or other electronic devices being used in the field for transmitting data to the PT&I database. 

157. Question:  Is there a Master plan?  

            Answer: Yes, Wallops has a Master Plan, which will be included in the technical library at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html prior to the final RFP.  However, please be advised that some sections of this Plan (that are sensitive but unclassified) have been removed.  
184.  Reference SOW 11 – Emergency Services Labor Requirements

a.  Question:  May we assume that the new contractor will have to assume the current CBA including wages and benefits per the Service Contract Act and Presidential Executive Order dated January 2009?
  
        Answer:  See FAR Part 22.1008-2 which states in part, the successor contractor must pay wages and fringe benefits (including accrued wages and benefits and prospective increases) to service employees.
b. Question:  If the above is fact, how many personnel are assigned to the fire department, what are their years of seniority and ranks?

                    Answer:  The number of personnel assigned to the fire department is approximately 30-35.  We are not able to provide their seniority/rank.  
188.  Reference Attachment 2 Workload 3.1.  The workload information for PM work orders is 2280+/- 200/year.  

Question:  Does the PM work order specify more than one (1) item of equipment?  If so, how many items of equipment are PM & PT&I performed on per year for NASA and for NAVY.  
 Answer:  The PM typically specifies one piece of major equipment (which are all identified in Attachment J-2), but PM can include smaller pieces of equipment within that major piece of equipment.  

As shown in the tables under 3.1 of Attachment J-2, the PM & PT&I performed on a per year basis for NASA and for NAVY are:

	Core Data (NASA)

	Preventive Maintenance Work Orders:   2280/yr +/- 200/yr
PT&I Tests:  4,200/yr +/- 500/yr
Operations: Continuous

Repairs:  950/yr +/- 50/yr

Routine/Emergency Trouble Calls: 3320/yr +/- 250/yr


	Core Data (Navy)

	Preventive Maintenance Work Orders:   650/yr +/- 50/yr
PT&I Tests:  335/yr +/- 50/yr
Operations: Continuous

Routine/Emergency Trouble Calls: 700/yr +/- 200/yr


208. SOW 2.3.6.1 requires the contractor to support the permitting process of Underground Utility Locating.

a. Question: Are there known or suspected Indian archeological sites in the area? Would the state Office of Archaeology and Historic Preservation be required to approve any construction or trenching?

         Answer:  No, there are no known or suspected Indian archeological sites on WFF.    No, the state Office of Archaeology and Historic Preservation would not be required to approve any construction or trenching.    
b. Question: Are there any known animal or plant species on the site that are protected or endangered and may be affected by construction and that would cause a disruption to the permitting process?   

  Answer:   Yes, any protected or endangered animal or plant species on the site are listed in the WFF Sitewide EA which will be posted in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html prior to release of the final RFP.
c. Question: Will the contractor be required to conduct archaeological site surveys and assessments?   

   Answer:  Yes, under SOW 8, the Contractor may be requested under a Special Studies IDIQ task to conduct archaeological site surveys and assessments.  
d.  Question: Will the contractor be required to inspect proposed project locations to determine presence of archaeological resources?  

    Answer:  Yes, under SOW 8, the Contractor may be requested in under a Special Studies IDIQ task to inspect project locations to determine presence of archaeological resources.   

e. Question: Will the contractor maintain archaeological curation databases. 

Will the contractor be required to maintain and upgrade artifact curation, including labeling and packaging of artifacts, data entry, and general maintenance of the curation facility? 

   Answer:  The Contractor will not maintain archaeological curation databases as we currently have none.    
f. Question: Is there a Wallops Island Sustainability Office responsible for ensuring compliance with state and federal environmental laws, rules, and regulations that impact operations at Wallops?  

Answer:  Yes, this function resides within the Wallops Flight Facility Environmental Office.
g. Question: Will the contractor be required to monitor NASA and the Navy’s ongoing activities at Wallops for compliance with natural and cultural resource requirements associated with federal regulations such as the Endangered Species Act, Marine Mammal Protection Act, and National Historic Preservation Act, by conducting routine natural and cultural resources management activities at Wallops Island.  

                Answer:  Yes, as part of core services, the contractor will be required to provide daily monitoring.  However, under SOW 8, project-specific activities, such as a Phase 1 Cultural Resources Assessment, would be requested under a Special Studies IDIQ task. 
h. Question: Will the contractor be required to comply with the Endangered Species Act, Marine Mammal Protection Act and National Historic Preservation Act and if so how?  

                 Answer:  Yes, the Contractor will be required to comply with the Endangered Species Act and the National Historic Preservation Act.  Required activities will be as coordinated by the NASA Environmental office and the “how” will vary depending on Contractor activity and location.  

i. Question: Will the contractor be required to support any natural and cultural resources monitoring, and provide any natural and cultural resources management services? 

 Answer:  Yes, as part of core services under SOW 8, the contractor will be required to provide daily monitoring.  Project-specific activities such as a Phase 1 Cultural Resources Assessment would be requested under a Special Studies IDIQ task.  
j. Question: Will the contractor be required to support cultural resources monitoring in accordance with the Taking of Marine Mammals Incidental to Launch Operations from Wallops Island? 

                 Answer: Yes, these services would be requested under SOW 8 via IDIQ task.  
210. Question: On page 163 of the draft RFP, for the Cost Volume, a “significant subcontractor” is defined as a subcontract expected to be at or above $10,000,000 of the total proposed Core Services contract value (base and option periods) or who will be directly responsible for performance of greater than 50% of the direct labor hours for any individual SOW Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) Level 3. On page 170, for the Past Performance Volume, a significant subcontractor is defined as any proposed subcontractor that is estimated to meet/exceed an average annual cost/fee of $4M or subcontractor responsible for performance of greater than 50% of the direct labor hours for any individual SOW Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) Level 3.  Shouldn’t these requirements be totally consistent in both areas?

        Answer:  No.  See answer to Question #183.240.  SOW 9.14.j  Health Standards and Certifications

Requirement:  “Provide health unit staff that have current, valid, unrestricted licenses from Virginia. The Contractor is responsible for complying with all applicable State licensing regulations and all State regulations with regard to the use of a physician assistant or nurse practitioner. Contractor shall provide an appropriate level of medical malpractice insurance coverage. Contractor shall provide evidence of state licensing, compliance with all State regulations, and medical malpractice insurance to the CO or designee within 5 working days prior to contract start date” 

Question:  If these services are provided by a qualified, certified, subcontractor, is the prime contractor still required to carry the medical malpractice insurance or can these requirements be flowed down to the subcontractor?

Answer:  No,  in accordance with paragraph (f) of  I.158 Clause 52.232-7, entitled “IDEMNIFICATION AND MEDCIAL LIABILITY INSURANCE”, the prime offeror shall require any subcontract for health care services to “provide evidence of and maintain insurance in accordance with paragraph (a)” of this same Clause.  
214.   Page159 -- The QAP shall describe the Offeror‘s approach to implement the required quality standards, explaining how they will be prioritized and applied to reduce program risk, and address the role of the proposed quality management approach in planning and meeting key program events and/or milestones. 
Question: Can you define what you mean by key program events and/or milestones? Are they the "key contract goals" included in page 158 or are there other key events and/or milestones?
    Answer:  No, they are not the key contract goals.  The key program events and/or milestones are the institutional types of program events and/or milestones afforded by the Contractor that could jeopardize mission readiness and reliability.  The specific events/milestones will vary depending on the specific workload of the Contractor at any specific time.
215. Special Contract Provision H-17 says "The Critical Positions and Qualifications listed in Attachment J-11 are considered essential to the work being performed under this contract." We have been unable to find Attachment J-11. 
a. Question: Will it be posted soon? 
       Answer:  See answer to Question #206.  The Offeror is to propose the Critical Positions and Qualifications under Section L.23.3, Subfactor B, draft RFP page 160.
b. Question: Regarding the Critical Positions, are they negotiable? Can we suggest the deletion or combining of critical positions for efficiencies?
    Answer:  See Answer to Question #215a.

c. Question: Will a list of incumbent personnel be provided since we are to tell you how many incumbent personnel we will retain?  
           Answer:  “Per Section L.23, Subfactor B The Core staffing approach shall include the expected incumbent capture approach and rate, and the specific technical approach for maintaining and augmenting a staff to meet on-going contract requirements and effective use of workforce leveling necessary to provide support in a dynamic and challenging operational launch range environment.”
217. There are several questions that have not been addressed in your previous question responses marked “reserved” 
Question: could you please indicate a timeframe that the government will answer those questions raised and also provide explanation for why they are marked “reserved” on your previous responses. 
               Answer:  Due to the large number of questions received to date, we numbered them as they were coming in -- rather than when we were posting them with answers.   Given they weren’t all able to be responded to in the same order they arrived, we placed “reserved” next to numbers for questions that we were not ready to release the answers for when that batch was released.  Once all answers have been posted, we do intend to have all questions and answers consolidated into one document and apologize for any inconvenience this may have caused.  
218. DRFP Reference: (L23.3). Mission Suitability Instructions by Subfactor, Subfactor A —Technical Approach, Paragraph 1 (page 154).

This section states in part: “a narrative that addresses the Offeror’s technical approach and methodology for providing technical support to both NASA and Navy combined as described in each of the SOW Sections 2.0-15.0 (J-1) and appendix (J-2) at SOW WBS Level 3 (2.0-15.0); and (2) a narrative describing the single most critical aspect within each functional SOW Section (2.0-15.0), including the Offeror’s specific approach for accomplishing each of the identified critical SOW aspect.”
Question: Does the Government require a specific technical approach to performing each individual SOW WBS level 3 function,( e.g., 2.3.1 Geographic Information System (GIS) Support, 2.3.2 Internet Web Page, 2.3.3 Configuration Record Control Drawings from As Builts,)? If not at what level should the technical approach narratives concentrate? Since each individual SOW Section 2.0-15.0 requires a diversity of services precluding an overall toplevel technical approach and narrative that will address the diverse tasks in each SOW section.

 
Answer:  See answer to Question #165.
220. DRFP Reference (L.21(a)(5)). Proposal Preparation — General Instructions (page 148).

This section states: “The format for each proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in Section M of this solicitation. The proposal content shall provide a basis for evaluation against the requirements of the solicitation. Each volume of the proposal shall specify the relevant evaluation criteria being addressed, if appropriate. The proposal shall include a matrix showing where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of this RFP are satisfied (i.e. SOW element versus Offeror’s proposal page numbers). It is intended that this be a simple matrix that should in no way inhibit an innovative approach or burden the Offeror. This proposal matrix is excluded from the page limitations contained in paragraph (b)(1) below.”

Question: Will the government number each paragraph and sub paragraph in Section L.23.3. Mission Suitability Instructions by Subfactor, and the corresponding paragraphs and sub paragraphs in M.4 MISSION SUITABILITY FACTOR (MAR 2011) 1. Mission Suitability Subfactors, Subfactor A Technical Approach, Subfactor B Contract Management Approach?, so that, in accordance with Reference L.21 .(a)(5) (5), the offeror’s proposal can be mapped into the evaluation criteria in the required matrix and cross referenced to the responses for each SOW element by page number.
  Answer:  No, the Government will not number each paragraph and subparagraph in Section L.23.3.  See answer to Question #166, the requirement for the matrix has been deleted. 

223.  DRFP Reference: (L.24.2) Cost Proposal Format — CORE, (page. 164).

Question: Section L.24 section 2, provides information and requirements for cost proposal format. However, the cost forms are not linked, nor are there any standardized formulas. Will the government provide linked spreadsheets and standardized formulas for consistency across proposals.

Answer:  No, Government spreadsheets will be not be linked or standardized for formulas.  Draft RFP Section L.21 (a)(1) requires the Offeror to provide their Cost Volume CDROM in Excel format.  Per L.24 Cost Volume, 1. Instructions, “The Offeror shall include all formulas in the cost charts to substantiate the whole dollar amount proposed.   In the event of any inconsistency between data provided on electronic media and hard copies, the hard copy data will be considered to be correct.”
224.  Section L.24 Cost Volume, 2. Cost Proposal Format (a) SOW Work Breakdown Structure and (g) Basis of Estimate at WBS Level 3, Pages 149, 164, 165 and 166, 

Requirement: “A single BOE shall be submitted for each SOW WBS Level 3 that encompasses the entire potential seven year period of performance (Base and all Option Periods combined).”
a. Question:  The offeror interprets this requirement to mean that the level 3 BOE equates to SOW 1.0, 2.0, 3.0 etc. and that all sub SOW elements are included within the single BOE. As an example, if SOW 3.0 Facilities Operations and Maintenance is Level 3, we interpret this to mean that the BOE for level 3 shall be a roll-up of all of the sub-elements of the SOW i.e. 3.1, 3.2, 3.2.1. 3.2.1.1, 3.2.2… through 3.12. Is this a correct interpretation?

        Answer:  That is the correct interpretation.

Requirement: “the Cost volume of your proposal is not page limited except for the page limit for the Basis of Estimate (BOE) section specified in table (b)(1)” (6 pages per BOE).  A single BOE shall be submitted for each SOW WBS Level 3 that encompasses the entire potential seven year period of performance (Base and all Option Periods combined).

b. Question : There is a significant amount of data (narrative description of the means and methods along with a quantitative analysis that includes calculations) that is required within the BOE per SOW. Can the page limitation requirement on BOEs be removed?
   Answer:  No.  However, clarification for the BOEs page limitation has been 
provided under Question 190.

226.  Reference SOW 1.3.5.2, Property Management 
a. Question: If these supplies and inventories are carried in a funded account, are they expensed upon receipt?
                  Answer:  Yes, any supplies purchased by the Contractor for their sole use on the WICC will be expensed upon receipt.

b. Question: How often are inventories taken and how are the adjustments (write-ons and write-offs) accounted for and funded?

                  Answer:  Stock purchased under SOW 1.3.5.2 for the sole utilization of the Contractor in performance of the WICC requirements is managed by the Contractor using the Maximo system per the requirements of SOW 15.2, Supply Support Operations.  Per SOW 15.3.1, “Physical inventories shall be of two types, sample and complete inventories.  The Contractor shall perform sample inventories at least annually, using the technique outlined in NPR 4100.1.  The Contractor shall perform complete inventories through either the complete lot or cycle count methods such that a wall to wall is accomplished once every five years.”  After an inventory, adjustments are made in the Maximo system by the Contractor.  Since the material is expensed upon receipt, the Contractor does not fund adjustments.  However, significant losses or potential theft may prompt a Government investigation, and the Contractor may be responsible for losses under this scenario.
227.  Reference SOW 1.3.5.2, Property Management 

 Question: Does the contractor bear any financial risks for write-offs?

     Answer:  For minor write-offs there is no financial risk.  However, significant losses or potential theft may prompt a Government investigation, and the Contractor may be responsible for losses under this scenario.
228.  SOW 2.3 Information Management Systems

Requirement:  The Contractor shall provide, operate, and maintain a Facilities Management Branch (FMB) Information Management System (IMS).  Services shall include limited hardware, software, network, documentation, and programming support.  Software support includes administration, operation and maintenance, and excludes development and modification unless otherwise noted in this SOW.

Question:  Is there a requirement for the Contractor to host our computer systems (business systems, servers, etc.) on site?
  Answer:  See answer to Question 3.d. 
229.   SOW 3.2.1.l Operations, Maintenance, and Repair 

Requirement:  “During the performance of all NASA and NAVY O&M work, the Contractor shall be responsible for all cleanup, housekeeping, proper storage and disposal of all materials, including hazardous materials and equipment that was used to complete the required work.  Prior to beginning work ensure materials to be disturbed are not hazardous.  The Contractor shall be certified to perform asbestos inspection and the gathering of suspected samples.  If a material is suspected to be hazardous (i.e. asbestos, lead, etc.) the Contractor shall immediately contact the WFF Environmental Office for additional testing and verification and notify the NASA WFF Safety Office.”

a. Question: Please clarify whether the Contractor is ultimately responsible for the additional testing, verification, and cleanup of asbestos.
                      Answer:  Per SOW 3.2.1.1, the Government is responsible for additional testing and verification.  Under SOW Section 8.3; Non-routine Special Studies, Restoration, and Remediation; the Contractor may receive an IDIQ task to perform the additional testing and verification, and abatement of asbestos.

b. Question: Will the contractor be required to perform abatement of asbestos as a representative of NASA WFF or will NASA WFF be responsible the asbestos cleanup? 
                    Answer:   See answer to a. above.

c. Comment: If NASA WFF is responsible for the asbestos cleanup, please outline the expectations for support from the Contractor.
 Answer/Response: N/A.
230.  SOW 3.2.1.l Operations, Maintenance, and Repair

 
Question:  Please provide the most recent asbestos and other hazardous materials surveys by building number and/or system.
   Answer:  The most recent facility surveys for asbestos and lead will be provided in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  The information is provided by building number.
232.  SOW 3.8 Change of Occupancy Services

Requirement 3.1.b, General Information provides “Core services for Navy include PM, PT&I, Operations, Routine Trouble Calls and Emergency Trouble Calls for all facilities and equipment at WFF as listed in Appendix J-2 with the exception of security systems, Navy housing, and those services listed in SOW Section 3.2.1.1 as IDIQ.  Repairs, PGM, ROI, Facility Pest Management, and Animal Control services may be requested through IDIQ task orders.”

However Requirement 3.8 provides “Change of occupancy of Navy family housing units includes but is not limited to all maintenance, repair/replacement and other work as required to make a vacant family housing unit ready for the next resident. Work may include replacement of floor coverings” 
Question: Please clarify core service requirements for Navy Housing as the first clause implies the work is part of IDIQ, while the second implies that is core services.

   Answer:  As stated under SOW Section 3.1.b, there are no core service requirements for Navy Housing, Navy Housing maintenance is IDIQ.  In addition, SOW Section 3.8 requirements for Navy Housing change of occupancy are IDIQ.
233.  SOW 4.1General Information
Question:  Will the Government please include Navy SCSCINST 5103.4G Working Aloft/Radiation Hazard Protection Procedure in the technical library?
              Answer:  Yes, Navy SCSCINST 5103.4I is the latest version and will be posted to the technical library at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html  
234.  SOW 6.4.7 Spray Buffing

Requirement:  Buffing operations shall meet OSHA and EPA requirements for buffing of asbestos containing floor tiles where applicable.  
Question: Can you provide a list of buildings/facilities and/or square footage where this type of tile is still in use and any historical information/quantities on any sampling information or incidents of asbestos release from these buffing activities.
  Answer:  The most recent facility surveys for asbestos and lead will be provided in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.    The information identifies buildings with known or suspected asbestos floor tiles.  There is no sampling information available and there have been no incidents of asbestos release from buffing activities.
236.  SOW 8.3 Non-Routine Special Studies, Restoration, and Remediation (IDIQ)

Requirement: Non-routine activities include site characterization and restoration activities, compliance order demonstrations, wetland delineations, preparation of project specific NEPA Environmental Assessments and Environmental Impact Statements.
Question:  Please identify the frequency of non-routine activities on an annual basis.
 
  Answer:  IDIQ requirements vary annually depending on many factors such as planned missions and construction projects.  IDIQ tasks from 2011 are included in the technical library for review http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.htmllocated at .
237.  SOW 9.0  NASA Occupational Medicine

Requirement 9.1.a states “The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive occupational medicine program and operate a health unit at Goddard Space Flight Center’s Wallops Flight Facility (GSFC/WFF).
a. Question:  What is the size (square footage) of the clinic and associated facilities for the Occupational Medicine Program?
         Answer:  A floor plan of the health unit with associated square footages has been uploaded to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  
b. Question: Is a floor plan available, if so, can you provide it? 
         Answer:  Yes.  A floor plan of the health unit with associated square footages has been placed in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  
239.  SOW 9.13  Medical Records
Requirement 9.13.a states “Medical records of all examinations done at the WFF health unit shall be maintained in the Government’s electronic health record system or in a secured (e.g., locked filing cabinet), standard, paper, medical record format until such time as the Government’s electronic health record system becomes available at WFF.”
Question:  Is Government’s Electronic Health Record System a Category 1, 2, or 3 system?  If this system is Government provided, please provide the name, version, and functionality overview of this system.
 Answer:  Since the last release of the draft SOW dated March 30, 2012, the Government Electronic Health Record System is now operational.  The Electronic Health Record System is a Category 1.  The software is Medgate GX, a COTS system.  It is a web accessible system that provides basic database functionality such as data input and data search.  The SOW will be revised in the final RFP to reflect this change.  
240. SOW 9.14.j  Health Standards and Certifications

Requirement:  “Provide health unit staff that have current, valid, unrestricted licenses from Virginia. The Contractor is responsible for complying with all applicable State licensing regulations and all State regulations with regard to the use of a physician assistant or nurse practitioner. Contractor shall provide an appropriate level of medical malpractice insurance coverage. Contractor shall provide evidence of state licensing, compliance with all State regulations, and medical malpractice insurance to the CO or designee within 5 working days prior to contract start date” 

Question:  If these services are provided by a qualified, certified, subcontractor, is the prime contractor still required to carry the medical malpractice insurance or can these requirements be flowed down to the subcontractor?

  Answer:  No,  in accordance with paragraph (f) of  I.158 Clause 52.232-7, entitled “IDEMNIFICATION AND MEDCIAL LIABILITY INSURANCE”, the prime offeror shall require any subcontract for health care services to “provide evidence of and maintain insurance in accordance with paragraph (a)” of this same Clause.  

243.  Quality Assurance Plan
Question: The QA Plan is referred to as Attachment J-19 on page 19 of the draft and Attachment J-20 on page 158 of the draft.  Please rectify.
 Answer:  See Answer to Question #197.
245.  Section G.6.(a), Page 30 Requirement: Property not recorded in NASA property systems must be managed in accordance with the requirements of the clause at FAR 52.245-1, as incorporated in this contract.

Question: Is there an additional property listing for property not listed in the NASA property system?
  Answer:  No, all property is listed in Attachment J-3 IAGP to the Draft RFP. 
246.  Section G.6.(b).(iii), Page 30 Requirement: The Contractor shall establish a record for Government titled property as required by FAR 52.245-1, as incorporated in this contract, and shall maintain that record until accountability is accepted by the Government.

Question: What system will property records be established and maintained in until accountability is accepted by the Government?
   
  Answer:  Property will be maintained in the central receiving facility until accepted by the Government and placed in the Government’s property system (n-PROP).  It is the Contractor’s responsibility to develop work instructions, per SOW Section 15.1, for receiving that includes a method for establishing a record of all property received and its disposition.  

249.  Section L.23.3.A, Mission Suitability Volume, Technical Approach

Requirement:  Regarding the 75 page limitation for the Mission Suitability volume, “The Offeror shall provide written Task Implementation Plans (TIPs) addressing each RTO included as Enclosures 1 and 2 (RTOs 1 and 2).” 
a. Question   Although not explicitly excluded from the page count as described in L.21.(b).1, is it the Government’s intent to include the TIPs within the page limitation?
        Answer:  Yes.  The TIPs to address the RTOs are part of the mission suitability page limitation
b. Question:  Is Goddard Procedural Reporting formatting required for the TIPS?
 
        Answer:  No, as long as formatting requirements stated in Section L21 are followed.
250.  Section L.23.3.B, Page 160

Requirement: The fourth full paragraph of Clause L.23.3.Subfactor B, states:  "Describe the procedures for determining applicability of subcontracting, if any, and for managing subcontracts.  The Offeror's planned usage, if any, of subcontracting agreements shall be addressed."

Question:  Please clarify whether the phrase "subcontracting agreements" is intended to mean something other than "subcontracts", i.e. letters of commitment, memorandums of understanding, or basic ordering agreements.
        Answer:   When an offeror (prime) has a subcontracting agreement with a company, it means that a letter of commitment or intent to do business with that company is in place and is considered a legal document for proposal purposes.

251.  Section L.23.3.B, Page 160

Requirement: “The Offeror shall describe the corporate or other Offeror or team assets which are available, and that can be committed to maximize the utilization of WFF assets.”
Question: Please define the term “team asset”.
  Answer:  Team asset is the asset of the prime’s significant subcontractor(s)   

252.  Section L.23.3.B, Page 161 Requirement: “The Offeror shall provide its overall corporate approach to implement the provisions of Clause H.4, Conditions for Performance of Commercial and Marketing Activities, to support and enable commercial space activities at the Wallops Flight Facility”.

Question: Please provide a more detailed description of what the Government considers as “Commercial and Marketing activities”.   If possible, please provide a list of current and projected Commercial and Marketing Activities at the facility.
  Answer:  Commercial and Marketing activities are performed at the Contractor’s discretion and utilize WICC II IAGP in the direct commercial entity to commercial entity performance of services with the CO’s approval.  These activities are for services required outside of (core or IDIQ) WICC II activities.  There is no projected Commercial and Marketing Activities as those are at the discretion of the Contractor.   See answers to Questions #52, 55 and 162.   Historical figures are provided in Question #162. 

253.  Environmental Surveys
Question: Please provide the latest site-wide environmental assessment or environmental baseline survey.
  Answer:  The latest site-wide environmental assessment as been posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
255.  Proposal Schedule
Question: Does the Government intend to conduct a more in-depth site visit including entry into every facility followed by one-on-ones?  This procedure would be valuable to offerors in understanding the requirements to interface with other contractors, as well as responsibilities and work flow for facilities under this contract.
  Answer:  No, the government does not intend to conduct any additional site visits and believe we have written the contract requirements clearly.  However, if there are still any remaining questions on the requirements, please submit them to Therese.L.Patterson@nasa.gov.

258.  Technical Library Spec 10.21.e, Patrol Vehicles

Requirement:  Ensure that all vehicles are American made. They may be used vehicles but cannot be more than six years old or have more than 60,000 miles. They must be air-conditioned, in first class condition operationally and in interior and exterior appearance. 
Question: Will the six years of age or 60,000 miles for use of used vehicles be for the life of the contract or will it have to be revisited annually during each option year?
               Answer:  SOW 10 requirements will not be part of WICC II.  These requirements are under a separate protective services procurement.
259.  Technical Library Spec 10.22.c, Combination Locks

Requirement: Provide configuration management of Federal Specification FF-L-2740 (currently the Navy uses MAS-Hamilton X-07) electromechanical combination locking devices on security containers, strong-room doors, and vaults. 
Question: What make and model of combination locks are used by NASA and are both NASA and the Navy combination lock sets as GFE?
 Answer:  SOW 10 requirements will not be part of WICC II.  These requirements are under a separate protective services procurement.
260.  Technical Library Spec 9.0, Occupational Medicine and Spec 7.7.3.c, Clinical Laboratory Services, X-Rays

Requirement: Provide the capability to perform all x-rays off-site. Method for performing x-rays shall be approved by CO.
Question: Does this mean no x-rays are performed at WFF, to include dental and basic body for broken bones? 
  Answer:  Yes, you are correct.  No x-rays are performed at WFF.

262.  SOW 8.1.f Environmental Management Support Services
Question: Please provide the precise format for the current TTMS.

  Answer:   The TTMS is an Excel spreadsheet. See answer to Question #140.
263.  Section H
Requirement: The DRFP mentions critical positions as outlined in Appendix J11.  This was not a part of the DRFP.  
a.  Question:  Can those critical position requirements and qualifications be provided? The WICC contract MOD of Dec. 2009 described position criteria that paralleled the existing contract force.  
         Answer:  See Answer to Question 215.
b. Question: Is the offeror allowed to deviate from this set of qualifications and position criteria for “critical” positions?
         Answer:  See Answer to Question 215.
264. WFF Master Plan

a. Question: Where can the WFF Master Plan be found? 
        Answer:  See answer to Question 157b.
b. Question: Is the Master Plan a complete and ratified GSFC document?

      Answer:  The Master Plan is a complete document, approved by GSFC and HQ and updated as required by the Government.
265.  Hazardous Waste Transportation

Requirement: The WICC Contractor, as a permitted Hazardous Waste Transporter, transports rocket motor casings to the Island Open Burn RCRA Part B site for static firing. 
Question: What is the hazard classification for the rocket motor casings being transported?
 Answer:  Clarification: WICC is not the permitted Hazardous Waste Transporter; NASA WFF is the permit holder.  The WICC Contractor follows requirements, provided by the Government, under the permit and maintains their driver certifications to support the permit.  The hazard classification is 1.1 – 1.3 explosives.  The hazardous waste classification is D003 reactivity.
267.  RTO 1

Requirement: RTO 1 mentions that the government will provide transportation of the rocket component from the Main Base Boat Basin to the Island Boat Basin.  
a. Question: Does this statement include that actual transfer and movement of the rocket component or does it only refer to acquisition of the barge?  
               Answer:  The Government will be responsible for transporting the rocket component from the Main Base Boat Basin to the Island Boat Basin.
       b.  Question B: If the contractor is responsible for transportation, should they assume that an assessment needs to be done with respect to dredging, route security (USCG), and issuance of NOTMs?
             Answer:  N/A, see answer to question 267 a.
268.   Wallops Research Park

Question: What is the status of the Wallops Research Park?  Are there plans for near-term expansion, and if so, what would be the expected role of the WICC contractor in support of this expansion?
 Answer:  The Wallops Research Park is not part of WFF, please refer to  http://www.wallopsresearchpark.com/page/contact-us for the status.  The WICC II Contractor has no expected role with any Wallops Research Park expansion.

275. Reference: Section L.14 Determination of Compensation Reasonableness (1852.231-71) (MAR 1994) p 143 states, (a) The proposal shall include a Total Compensation Plan. This plan shall address all proposed labor categories, including those personnel subject to union agreements, the Service Contract Act, and those exempt from both of the above. 
       Question: Is there one or more Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) that govern any portion of the Fire and Emergency Services to be provided under this contract? If yes, please provide a copy of the current CBA(s).
          Answer:  The current Firefighters CBA is posted on the technical library at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html
282.  Reference Section L.24 Cost Volume, 2(c) Summary of Estimated Cost and Incentive Fee at SOW WBS Level 2, page 165, instructs offerors to summarize elements of cost and incentive fee at WBS Level – 2, by Total NASA cost and Total NAVY cost. 

a.  Question: We haven’t identified any reference to Navy support in SOW section 11.0 Emergency Services; however, within the recent release of Government responses to questions, regarding Personal Safety, it was noted that fire extinguishers are located in every building on site, including Navy Buildings. 
Answer:  Navy buildings do have fire extinguishers; however, the Navy is not under SOW 11 core requirements.  All SOW 11 core requirements are the responsibility of NASA.

b. Question: What are the estimated breakouts of core services and IDIQ emergency services in support of NASA?

     Answer:  All emergency services in 2011 were NASA core services.  There were no IDIQ tasks issued in support of emergency services for NASA in 2011.    Future IDIQ emergency services support is unknown.   
c.  Question: What are the estimated breakouts of core services and IDIQ emergency services in support of Navy?

      Answer:  See answer to a. above.  We do not anticipate any Navy IDIQ emergency services.
285.  Reference: SOW 8.0 (f), page 105, Maintain a Task Tracking and Management System (TTMS) in the form of an electronic database for all services and environmental programs provided in this section (Category 2).  
a. Question: Does this system currently exist or does the contractor need to develop it?

      Answer:  The system already exists.  
b. Question: Is there any software that will need to be purchased?

                   Answer:  No, software does not need to be purchased. See answer to Question #140.

286.  Reference SOW 8.0 & 9.0, pages 104-128
a. Question: Would the government please furnish workload indicators for a time period (month, quarter, annual) for the referenced SOW areas?

        Answer:  Workload indicators are provided in Attachment J-2, Sections 8.0 and 9.0.
b. Question:  Are there Unions involved with the current Environmental and Medical contractors?

  Answer:   No.  All applicable CBAs are on the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
287. Reference: SOW 8.0, pages 104-110

a. Question: Are there any current environmental remediation projects/requirements at the facilities? If so, would you please furnish a list of the remediation activities?

        Answer:   See below.  

NASA Active Restoration Sites (6)

· Sites 5 and 12 (former wind tunnel and paint stain site)

· Waste Oil Dump

· Former Fire Training Area

· South End Disposal Area

· Main Base Firing Range Complex

· Old AFTF 

Formerly Used Defense Sites (FUDS) – USACE Baltimore District (13)

· Project 3 – Military Munitions Response Program (MMRP) – Gunboat Point

· Project 4 – MMRP Machine Gun Rocket Firing Range

· Project 5 – MMRP Grebe Range

· Project 6 – Hazardous, Toxic and Radioactive Waste (HTRW) Wallops Island Cantonment  Area

· Project 7 – MMRP Boat Basin/Visitor Information Center

· Project 8 – HTRW Boat Basin

· Project 9 – MMRP Main Base Ranges (Skeet Range)

· Project 10 – MMRP Practice Bombing Target

· Project 11 – HTRW Main Base Areas of Interest

· Project 12 – Containerized-HTRW Petroleum, Oil, and Lubricants (POL) Main Base Areas of Interest

· Project 13 – HTRW-Sewage Treatment Facilities

· Project 14 – MMRP Regulus Launch Area

· Project 15 – HTRW – Active Remediation Areas (Construction Debris Landfill, Sites 14 and 15, and Site 9) 

b. Question: May we be given access to the most recent comprehensive EPA Environment Impact Statement for the Wallops facilities? 

                    Answer:  There is no current comprehensive Environmental Impact Statement.  A web link to the current comprehensive Site-wide Environmental Assessment is being uploaded to the technical library at located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

288.   Reference SOW 9.2.2 (c), page 114, Administer referral treatments and medications to civil service employees subject to the approval of the physician…
  Question: Is there a preferred or required network of community based health care providers (specialists, diagnostic services, rehab, labs, etc.) for work related injury or illness referrals? If so, would the government please furnish the list?

   Answer:  No.  There is no preferred or required network of community based health care providers.

289.  Reference SOW 9.6 (a)(4), page 118, fee-for-service screenings as approved by the CO or designee. Examples of potential fee-for-service screenings include mammography testing, bone density screenings, and carotid screenings
a. Question: How would the fees be collected?

         Answer:  Fee-for-service can be through outside vendors brought in by the Contractor with payment directly to the vendor by individuals using the fee-for-service screenings or can be provided by the Contractor as a commercial service with payment directly to the Contractor by individuals using the fee-for-service screenings.

b. Question: Is all equipment necessary to perform these screenings provided by the government? If so will you list them in Attachment J-3?

  Answer:  Fee-for-service screenings will be provided at the Contractor’s discretion so equipment requirements are unknown to the Government.  All equipment provided is listed in Attachment J-3.

290.  Reference SOW 9.7 (f), page 118, Maintain appropriate hazardous materials emergency treatment and antidote drugs necessary to treat WFF personnel involved in hazardous materials incidents. 
Question: Does the Offeror need to price these medications or are they purchased through WFF procurement?

 Answer:  Yes.  The Offeror must price and provide these medications.
293.  Reference: DRFP, page 146, L.21, Proposal Preparation-General Instructions, first paragraph

Question: Should “Attachment A” be “Attachment J-1”?

 
Answer:  Yes, the RFP will be revised as follows:  

FROM: “Attachment A” 

TO: “Attachment J-1.”

295.  Reference: DRFP, page 148, L.21.(a).(5), fourth sentence: “The proposal shall include a matrix showing where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of this RFP are satisfied (i.e. SOW element versus Offeror's proposal page numbers).”

Question:  Since this proposal requirement is in the general proposal instructions sections, it appears to be a requirement for a single matrix that addresses all proposal volumes and all evaluation criteria (Mission Suitability, Cost, and Past Performance). Please confirm if this is intended to be (1) a single matrix, (2) one matrix for each proposal volume, or (3) due to the reference to the SOW--only a single matrix that encompasses the Mission Suitability Volume? The later would seem to be consistent with the item, “SOW Compliance Matrix” shown in (a) in the Mission Suitability portion of the table in Section L.21.(b).(1) - Mission Suitability, (a) row.

                Answer:  The matrix requirement has been deleted.  See answer to Question 166.

296.  Reference: DRFP, page 148, L.21.(a).(5), fourth sentence: “The proposal shall include a matrix showing where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of this RFP are satisfied (i.e. SOW element versus Offeror's proposal page numbers).”

The entire set of Mission Suitability volume evaluation criteria (approximately 5-1/2 pages) are all contained within just two numbered RFP sections (M.4.1.A and M.4.1.B), therefore, this matrix would basically just indicate that Section M.4.1.A would addressed in virtually all of the Technical Approach subfactor pages of the Mission Suitability proposal. Likewise for Section M.4.1.B and the Management Subfactor response pages. To enable this matrix to be more meaningful, we suggest that the Section M.4.1.A and M.4.1.B evaluation factors be numbered/lettered to at least one lower level (M.4.1.B.1, M.4.1.B.2, etc.). This will enable more specific and more useful cross-reference matrix information. (Depending on how the Government answers another questions dealing with proposal organization and the precedence of Sections L and M, also numbering Section L.23.3.A and L.23.3.B to at least one level lower may be of value.) This same question could also apply to the Past Performance volume, if a cross-reference matrix is required for that volume.

        Question: In summary, could the Government please verify the column headers it expects to see in this matrix? Would it as shown below? Which column would the Government want to be the master, for sorting purposes, since many evaluation criteria do not relate to SOW requirements?

	SOW Technical Requirements
	Evaluation Criteria
	Proposal Page Number

	SOW 6.2.a
	
	xxx

	
	M.4.1.B
	xxx

	
	
	


              Answer:  See answer to Question 166.

298.  Reference: DRFP, page 153, L.23.3.A, third paragraph, next to last sentence: “The staffing approach shall be documented in Exhibits 15A, 15B, and 15C.”

Question: Are the staffing plans for each RTO (Exhibits 15A, 15B, and 15C) to be only presented in the Cost Volume and if not, are they outside of the page count? 

               Answer:  The staffing plans for the required RTO (Exhibits 15A, 15B, and 15C) are under the L.23.3, Mission Suitability Instructions, Subfactor A--Technical Approach.  They are part of the Mission Suitability Proposal Volume page limitation - they are not part of the Cost Proposal Volume.  Also, see answer to Question 216.   

303.  Reference: DRFP, page 158, L.23.3.Subfactor B, last paragraph on the page, first sentence. “Offeror’s approach to ensuring quality services throughout the duration of the contract. The QAP will be incorporated into the contract as Attachment J-20.”
  Question: Should the Attachment be “J-19?”

                   Answer:  Yes, also see answer to Question 197.
305.  Reference: DRFP, page 161, L.23.3.B, second paragraph, first sentence: Commercialization Clause H.4

Question: Would the Government provide information about current commercialization activities that may continue into the WICC II timeframe? Is any of this information company proprietary?
             Answer:  We don’t anticipate any of the current commercialization activities to continue into WICC II. Yes, some of this information is company proprietary except for the types of commercialization activities.
307.  Reference: DRFP, page 173, L.25.(b), last paragraph, last sentence: “Offerors shall include in their proposal the written consent of their proposed significant subcontractors to allow the Government to discuss the subcontractors' past performance evaluation with the Offeror.”

          Question: Suggest these written consent letters be excluded from the Past Performance volume page limits. This item is currently not addressed in the Past Performance section of table in Section L.21.(b).(1) on page 149.

            Answer:  See answer to Question 195.

334.  Reference SOW and IDIQ task order provisions.  Major sections of the SOW are identified as IDIQ for which task orders are issued for performance.  In addition, sprinkled throughout the SOW in every section, there are exceptions to the CORE and many unique or specialized work requirements that must be accomplished via IDIQ.  Section J-2 indicates there will be 30 or so construction projects performed annually on an IDIQ basis; however, all of the other CORE exceptions and specialized work requirements must translate into a large number of task orders performed annually.  
Question:  How many task orders were executed between NASA and the incumbent contractor in each of the last two fiscal years?  Please clarify.

  Answer:   Tasks are issued by contract year under the current WICC.  There were 145 tasks issued in contract year 2010 and 95 tasks issued in 2011.  The 2011 tasks have been posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

349.  Reference:  File: 146923-DRAFT-002-009, DD254, block 13 (continued on page 3) Page 3 of the DD254 was not provided. 
Question: Will page three be provided?
  Answer:  Yes.  Page 3 was inadvertently omitted and will be incorporated in the final RFP.

351.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-003 RFP Sec. L page 163 first paragraph reads: “Duty charges, if any shall be included in the cost, regardless of whether or not duty free certificates are obtained.”

Question:  Do Duty charges refer to any form of tax (i.e. sales tax, rental tax, etc)?

  Answer:  No, duties refer to United States laws which impose duties on foreign supplies imported into the customs territory of the United States.   See Federal Acquisition Regulation Part 25.9.

358.
Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-003 RFP Sec. L.25 (b) Past Performance Questionnaires, page 173. The DRFP states, “ Offerors shall include in their proposal the written consent of their proposed significant subcontractors to allow the Government to discuss the subcontractors’ past performance evaluation with the offeror.” 
Question: Will the subcontractor consent letters be included in page count of Past Performance Volume?
  
  Answer:  No, see answer to Question 195.

359.
Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 8, Paragraph 1.2.3b states, “…all personnel employed for work under the contract have adequate and appropriate qualifications including training, licenses, and certifications required by Federal, State, and local laws and regulations; NASA Policy Directives (NPD); NASA Procedural Requirements (NPR), Goddard Policy Directives (GPD), and Goddard Procedural Requirements (GPR) and the records shall indicate the current status of all required training.
Question: Will the government provide a list of all Government required training including Safety, Health, and Environmental training?
    Answer:  No, this is a performance based SOW.  The Offerors need to propose their required training based on their understanding of the SOW requirements.
382.
Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Section 3.9 Pest/Nuisance Management and Animal Control (IDIQ), subsection 3.9.1 Pest Management (Insect), subparagraph a, calls for the development of an Integrated Pest Management Plan “within 30 calendar days of contract start” along with the immediate implementation of that plan once approved by the CO. It is also noted that all of section 3.9 is listed as IDIQ.  

Question: Is it the intent of the Government to issue a Task Order for the plan development or should the development and implementation of the IPMP be considered core activities?
 Answer:  See answer to Question 151.

383.
Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-003 RFP, p. 19 and p. 130 refer to QAP as Attachment J-19.  Draft RFP, Section L, p. 158: “The QAP will be incorporated into the contract as Attachment J-20.” 

Question: is QAP to be proposed as attachment J-19 or J-20?
  Answer:  QAP is to be proposed as attachment J-19.  Also, see answer to Question 197.
